SOUTH DAKOTA
PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
e 500 East Capitol Avenue
oSt Pierre, South Dakota 57501-5070
Gary Hanson, Chai S
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Dustin Johnson, Commissioner
June 30, 2008
Patricia Van Gerpen VIA ELECTRONIC FILING

Public Utilities Commisison
500 E. Capitol Ave
Pierre, SD 57501

Re:  Pipeline Safety Complaint

Dear Ms. Van Gerpen:

Capitol Office
(605) 773-3201
1-866-757-6031 fax

Warehouse
{605) 773-5280
(605) 773-3225 fax

Consumer Hotline
1-800-332-1782

Enclosed for filing please find Commission Staff’s Complaint regarding alleged pipeline

safety violations connected to a 2007 pipeline incident.

Thank you,

Kara Semmler



BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
' OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPLAINT COMPLAINT
OF COMMISSION PIPELINE SAFETY

STAFF AGAINST NORTHWESTERN

ENERGY REGARDING VIOLATIONS OF PS08 -
THE FEDERAL PIPELINE SAFETY ACT

Comes now the staff of the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
(Commission), pursuant to its authority in SDCL Title 49, Chapter 34B and requests the
Commisston find violations of the Federal Pipeline Safety Act, order such violation be
corrected and access civil penalties as appropriate along with any other action the
Commission sees appropriate. In support of this Motion, staff asserts as follows:

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. The Commission has jurisdiction over this matter according to SDCL Title
49, Chapter 34B, Pipeline Safety. Specifically, “the federal safety standards adopted as
Code of Federal Regulations, title 49...parts 191, 192, 193 and 199...are adopted as
minimum safety standards for this chapter. The commission shall establish and
implement a compliance program to enforce these safety standards. The program shall be
established and implemented in a manner that fully complies with requirements for state
certification under the United States Code, title 49, Section 60105...” SDCL 49-34A-3,

2. Accordingly, Commission pipeline safety inspectors investigated probable
cause and operator safety procedures in the days that followed a March 2007 natural gas

pipeline incident affecting NorthWestem Energy (herein “NorthWestern”) facilities.



3. All relevant facts, commission pipeline safety staff findings and

recommendations are attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein.

RELIEF REQUESTED
1. Staff requests the Commission take action as recommended in the attached
report, order civil penalties as a result of any violations and any take any other

enforcement action allowable under 49 CFR 190 deemed appropriate by the Commission.

Signed and dated this%O_f day ol\b\Aﬂi— , 2008

Kara Semmler, Staff Attorney

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 E. Capitol Ave

Pierre, SD 57501

(605)773-3201




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE I~
The undersigned hereby certified that on the Z c ) day of June, 2008, a
copy of the Complaint was served via electronic mail to the following:

MR BRETT M KOENECKE
MAY ADAM GERDES & THOMPSON LLP

koenecke@magt.com

Signed and dated this ; day OM , 2008

Kara Semmler, Staff Attorney

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission
500 E. Capitol Ave

Pierre, SD 57501

(605)773-3201



South Dakota Public

| Utl!itleS Cammsss;eﬂ |

Memo

To:  Chaiman Hanson, Vice-Chaiiman Kolbeck, and Commissioner Johnson

€C:  Pairicia Van Gerpen, Kara Semmier and Daris Ormesher

Date:  May 22, 2008

Re:  SPPUC Pipeline Safoty Staft Report on thie Mifchell Incident in Docket PS07-002

Summary of Incident Facts

On March 8, 2007 the house located at 1612 Bridle Drive in Mitchell, SD exploded at 11:31
amasshcwmn Figure 1 below. Two adjacent homes wete also damaged. A leak on the
hottom side of a two inch steel gas main located in the boulevard in front of 1612 Bridle Drive
was found by the natural gas system operator, NorthWestemn Energy (See attached Figure
2). Gas was released and damages In -excess of $50,000 resu Consequently the
incident was reported 10 the National Response Center and the Pipeline and Hazardous
Materials Administration (PHSMA) -Office: of Pipeling Safety under the Pipeline Safety
‘Regulations located in 46 CFR Part 191. Probable cauge of the ignition source and probable
route of entry of gas into the house were riot detetmined,

Figure 1. Explotled house at 1612 Bridle Drive, Mitchell, 8D



Staff's Role

South. Dakota gas pipeline safety staff has two roles in a natural gas incident investigation:

Monitor the operaters procedures for determining probable cause and prevention of
raocourrence under 49 CFR 182,617. An analogy is that Staff must ke the water
temperature o ses if the oparater 1ook tie water temperatiire correctly.

Determine operator corpliance of both Parts 48 CFR 191 and 192 code sections
and the operator's operations and majnienance standards applicable to the incident.

Probable Cause

Staff hired an independent physical metallurgy laboratory and a physical metallurgical expert
witness I its sffort to determine if probabﬁe cause was datermined comectly. Staff's expert-
withess conciuded:

‘whether muttiple impaots were treatet

Thé cause of the incident was mechanical damage.

. A rmechanically created gouge caused the pipe 1o fail

Themode of failure was a circumferentially oriented brittle crack that severed the hottom three

-juarters of the pipe.
‘No evidetice:of t‘ime-dapendant anlargement of the gouge was found.

Extemal corrosion played no role In the incident.

‘The pipe was adequatsly protocted from external corrosion,

The.pipe was furnace butt-wekiad pipe.

The gipe contained no manufacturing defects.

The damiage that caused the failure is not new, but it was not'possible to establish when it
oceurred..

Multiple impacts nated on the pipa specimen could have possibly raquired more than one
miotion of a single pisce of excavatingequipment. It was riot possibiie fo détarmitie, howaver,

§ during 4 single excavation or during mare thasn.one.
expavation,
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Figure 4. Pipe with crack ariérited oh bottom a8 oalifrad i the gréunid.
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Possible Scenario

A fitting stenario based on availablé facts is that the freeze-thaw cycles on the pipe (which
was woakaned from third party mechanical damage) resulted in a sudden oné-stage large
volume tleak (estimated by Staff's expert wilhess at 277 cubic fast per holir). The laaking gas
may have travsted beneath the frozen topsoil thmugh 1his lass denise soil basktilt of the 2004
waterline trench excavation, entering the house in the basement. An appliance in the
basement ignited the gas when the lower explosive limit conceniration was reached.

Compliance Review Results
Hazardous Scene. On March 14, 2007, Martin Bettmann, the South Dakota Pipeline. Safety

Program Manapet, fequested a gas migration survéy (bar hole.survey) to determine probable
rolite of entry of gas into the hguse. Nobar hole data had been cellected biy the operator

prior to-March 14 six days after the incident.

For a bar hole.gurvey, a small diameter rod is driven 18” to 24" irto thie ground, removed-and
a combustible gas meter probe is then inserted. A read of the gas content of the air
contaified in the soll is then dbtained. The combustible range of natural gas In air is from
about 4.5%. gas in 4dir 1o 15% gas v air.  The lower aumber {4.5%) is called the lower
explosive limit.or LEL. The highet number (15%) Is ¢alled the upper explosive limit or UEL.
Bar hole surveys are used to:

-« Detarmine it an underground leak exists

#» Determine the exaet location of the leak

¢ Determine the raute of entry of gas into a facility

« Detarmine if gas has dissipated making the area safe forreentry

The resullts of tha requested bar hole survay indicatet! readings as high as 45% gas along
the south foundation of 1812 Bridie Drive (facing the streat). These results and additional bar
hole results &t neighboring atidresses clearly indicated an unsafe environment, As a result
the operator closed the street, evacuated somse reslkdences and vented the sail to remadiate
the hazardous gas lovels..

The operater's Standard 1500, Section 5.2.9 which is part of the guldelines for handiing gas
leaks states °i high concentrations of gas are found outsida the building, ventilate around the
foundation by digging holes.” Clearly, a leak existed and Standard 1500, Section 5.0 does
not limit Section 5.2.6 only for use in determining whether a eak pootrred. Rather, Section
5.0 in its- entirety is-part of a response procedure. Standard 1500, Section 5.0 is attached to
this report for reference. Staff consequently finds that the operator is. in violation of its
operating standard. The operatar should have conducted a bar hole survey 1o determine
whether high congentrations of gas existed. The operator should have then appropriately
vented the sail. Having not done that, a potentially dangercus situation existed for sbx days
after the incident itself.

Staff therefore recommends that the Commission issue a Notice of Probable Violation of 49
CFR 192,605 (a) which states;
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General, Each operalor shall prepare and follow for -each pipeline, a manual of written
procedures for condicting operations and maintenance activities and for emergency
response.  For Iransmission lines, the manual must also include procedures: for handiing
abnomnal operations. This maéanual must be reviewed and Updated by the opserator at
intervals hot exceading 15 months, but at Isast one sach calendar year, This mianual riust
be prepared before operations of a pipeline system commence. Appropriate parts of the
manual must be kept at locations where operafions and maintenance achivities are
conducted,

Additionally, 49 CFR 192.615 (7) states an operator’s emergency plans must provida for

“making safe any actual or potential Razard to fife or proparty.” In Staff's opinion, the fajlure to
bar hole and ventilate at the close of the incident on March 8 or 9 at the latest constiiutes a
violation of this code section. Staff thierefore recommends that the Commission also issue a
Notice of Probable Violation-of 49 CFR 192,615 (7).

Staff further recommends that a proposed penalty-of $5,000 be assessed for each ofﬁzetwo
notices of probable violation.

Please note that a gas migration survey after such an incldent Is considersd standard
Industry practice and’is not an uniisual oceurrence or expectation.

Invéstigation of failure. The operator's investigation of failures in compliance with 48 CFR
192617 {(3ee below) is found in aMached Standard 1065, Section 2.1 states that a detailed
arialysis, especially of repeated occurrences, should be made when the analysis could be
useful ‘in:minimizing a recurrenca of the failure. The operator statéd its detailed analysis is
based on physical and photograph;c evidence. The results indieate the probable catse is
third party damage. In. Staff's opinion, proper evaluation of the physical evidence in this case
requires a metallurgical opinion. Afthough the operator's mstaiiurgical expert was present at
the metallurgical evaluation organized by Staff, no metallurgical opinion from the operator has
been offered.

49 CFR 192617

Each operator shall establish procedures for analyzing accidents and fallures,
including the selection of sampies of the falled facity or equipment for jaboratory
axamination, where appropriate, for the purpose of determining the causes of the faiture and
minimizing the possibilly of a recumence.

Staff recarnimends that tha Commissicn either:

= Order the Operator to producé a metallirgical report stating the metallurgical
‘brocedures the operator used 10 deteérming probable Galse.

s O, issus a Notice of Concam for not following the intent of its -detailed analysis
procedures in Standard 1065, In Staff's opinion, the operator's detailed analysis
procedyres should have been followed. Staff believes a determination of probable
cause should have been based on metallurgical analysis

A Notice of Concem is used to notify the opefator that although a violation may hot have:

oceurred; @ change is needed to ensure fhat the pragtica does nof lead to a violation in the
future.

Emergency Procedures. The operator’s Standard 1500, Section 2.2 requires annual review
of emergency procedures. A review of three sample years of annual review records indicates
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that in only one year was the actual Stardard 1500 reviewed. In the other two years, more
general emergerncy response procedures that covered both 49 CFR 615 b (2) and OSHA
,requ:ments ware reviewed. In Staff's opinion, the. operator's standard requires specific

© review of Standand 1500 on an annual basis. Staff therefore recommends the Commission
issue a Notice of :Probable Violation for noncompiiance with 49 CFR 192.605 (a) which
slates:

Genaral.  Each operator shall propare and foflow for each pipeline, a manual of written
-pmmdu:es for conducting operations arid maintenance activities and for emergency
_ &, For transinission fines, the manual must also include procedures for handling
abrwm:a! operations. This manual must be reviewsd and updated by the operator at
intervals not excesding 15 months, but af least one each calendar year. This manual must
bg preparad belore cperations of a pipeline systern commence. Appropriate parts of the
manual musr be kept at locations whers operations .and maintenance aciivities are

Damage Prevention and Public Awareness. Excavator damage data in Mitchell indicates
& flat to-declining trend since 2001 and may support the operator's conciusion that this is an
isoiated incident. The Commission may still find # usefuil, howsver, for the operator to
supplement its public awareness program. Specifically, it may be prudent for the operator to
:make extra efforts 1o reach Mitchell area excavators and the affected public over a five year
period. Additional communications. could include information Telated to the South Dakota
Ohe Call requirement that all line hits be reported (ses SDCL 49-7A-12), The operator
ihdicatod 4 fine hit was hot repoitad for 1612 Bridle Drive and a review of One Gall racorts
.alsb showsno reports.

Operator Qualifications. A review of operator qualification records supplied by the oparator
indicates thal the person hefow performed ‘a covered task but was not listed as having
cument qualification training pnior to performinig the task. This is shown in the table below:

| Reguiator Station- Tnspection 0Q Date
Inspections: ‘Date
“Fyan ledema 2/26/05 51705, Pressure Hegulating, Limiting
- and Reliet Device — O&M

Staff recommends that the Commission issue a Notice of Probable Viglation for non-
compliance with 49 CFR 192.805(b). See balow.

Each operafor shall have and follow & written qualffication program. The program shall
Includs provisions to;

(a) Identify covered lasks;
{b} Ensure through evaluation that individuais performing covered tasks are qualified;
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(c) Alfow individuals that are not qualified pursuant to this subpart to perform a covered task
Ifdirected and observed by an individual that is quahﬁed

{d) Evaluate an individual if the operator has reason to bejieve that the individual's
performanice of a covered task conifiblied 10 an incidenit as defined in Part 181;

{e) Evaluate an individual if the operator has reason to believe that the individual is no longer
qualified to perform a covered task;

) Communicate changes that affect covered tasks to individizals performing those covered
tasks; and

(o) Identiy those covered tasks and the mfen/a!s at which evaluation of the individual’s
qualifications is needed.

(h) After Deceinber 16, 2004, provide iraining, as appropriale, to ansure that individuals
parforming covered tasks have the. necessary kriowledge and skills Yo perforrn the tasks in a
mannarthat ensures tha safe operation of pipeline facilities; and

(- ARer December 16; 2004, notify the Administrator or a state agency. participating under 49
LL8.C. Chapter 601 if the oporator significantly modifios the: program afiar the Administrator
or stale agency has verifiad that if complies with this séction.

Reporls. The following deviations were found on the Gas Distribution Ineident Report form
7100.1 as filed with the PHMSA office:

» Repiort number 20070060-1806 filed elactronically was incomplete as Section D,
Material Specifications itams 3-8, were not-completad: !f information is not available,
B/A ist0 be entered as the responise,

« A paper filed 7100.1 report with Section D completed was also filed with a copy to
the‘South Dakota Pipeline Safety Office. Thiat report was missing the signature date
and title-of the preparer.

Staff recommends that the Commission Issue-a Notice of Concam 16 the oparator for issuing
incomplste reports.

Conclusion.

Although none of the pipeline safety violations sited above caused the March 8, 2007 incident
ihey were discovered as a resylt of therincident. Clearly Staff is most concemed with the
salety aspacis and thus does not believe chvil fines:are necessary whéro the issue is a inatter
of intemal record keeping. Staff feels strongly, howeéver, that a dangerous environment did
exist 4s a result of the delayed bar hole survey and therefore believes civil penalties are
appfopriate. Finally, it is unfortunate the operator did tiot believe it was impoirtant to
scientifically determine the cause of the incident. As thé system operator, Staff believes
NorthWastarn has an obligation to miore precisely report the cause 10 its customers, investors
and this Commission,
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N-.rthWestern . .
Everzy  NorthWestemn Public Service

(Gas Standards Subject: Emergency Date Effective

Emergency: General 07/13/2004

Standard Number
1500
Approved
Committee

Supersedes Dated Prepared By
Standard: 1500 07/01/2002 M. Baruth

1.0 Scope

The purpose of this standard is to describe the minimum requirements of Northwestern
Energy’s policies concerning general emergency procedures. These procedures are intended to

comply with the minimum requirements as set by the Department of Transportation CFR 49
part 192,615, 192.616 and 192.617.

2.0 Statement of Policy Concerning Emergency Procedures

21  This Procedure has been prepared 10 provide company employees with guidelines ina
gas emergency. ("Emergency” means a situation in which human life or property is in
jeopardy and prompt summoning of aid is essential).

22

All Asea Leadership and Operating Personnel are furnished a copy of these procedures,
and shall utilize them as required. The Area Leadership shall require that an annual
review of these procedures be conducted. Further review will be conducted with
employees following an emergency to determine if these procedures are effective. Any

corrections, deletions, amendments, or proposals to this manual should be submitted to
the O&M Standards Committee by letter.

30 Receiving, Identifying and Classifying Neotjces of Events Which Reguire Immediate Response

31 The person taking the call shall obtain as much information as is readily available from

the party calling. Questtons that can be used to identify and classify the event are as
follows:

3.1.1 Whatis your name?
3.1.2 What is your address (location)?
3.1.3 Note the time of call

3.1.4 About the event:

How sirong is the gas smell

Do you hear gas blowing (hissing sound)?
Are there any gas line breaks?

Arse your pilot lites out

Is there any construction in the Area

Fire

Explosion

¢« 9 & * a2 o+ 0

3.2 The person taking the call shalt advise the caller to take the following actions when
there 1s Gas Blowing, Strong Gas Smell, or Line Break.

3.2.1 Evacuate and clear the area.

322 Wam
. Don't use switches
. Don't {ight match
. Don't re-enter

1500 - }



N. rthWestern: ' .
bregy NorthWestemn Public Service
Gas Standards Subject: Emergency
Emergency: General

Dat_e-iffective Standard Number
07/13/2004 1500 I

" Supersedes Dated Prepared By Approved
Standard: 1500 07/01/2002 M. Baruth Committee

3.3 Dispatch a technician 10 the location.

34  Notify Area Leadership if the information gathered about the event indicates an
emergency.

Call Fire Department, Police or other appropriate official agencies, if required.

4.0 Response to Emergency Calls

4.1  Procedure for investigating reported leaks inside or near a building.

4.1.1

Gas leaks can vary from a pilot out on a range to a broken main or service. Itis
necessary to get enough information to determine if an emergency exists.

4.1.2 Persons responding to a leak call shall be equipped with at least a combustible

gas indicator, leak detection solution, wrench for shutting off gas supply and an
explosion proof flashlight and a fire extinguisher.

41.3 When a leak call is investigated, (either inside or outside leak}, it shall first be

determined if a hazard from combustible gas exists within the building or

buildings. . :

a) Combustible gas indicator must be zero prior to entering the hazard area
to ensure a clean atmosphere.

b) Sampie the atmosphere with the combustible gas indicator in such areas
as the top of the stairwell, ceiling of the basement or other confined areas.

c) If a combustion hazard exists evacuate the building.

d) Hotels, Auditoriums etc. may require additiona) help for evacuation.

e) Shut off the gas supply to building if readily accessible.

f) Check adjacent buildings for combustion hazard and evacuate, if
necessary.

g) Call for assistance - company, fire department, and police, if necessary.

h) In some cases ventilation of the building is appropriate, in other cases
once all the people are absent, the electric supply should be discontinued
to reduce ignition sources before ventilation is atternpted.

) If no combustion hazard exists inside the building, check for combustible

readings at the service entrance and continue out to the main and along

the main in the immediale area; all sanitary and storm sewers should be
checked in the immediate area.

D If no combustion hazard is found, then the call will be treated as a
routine investigation.

1500 -2



N yrthWestern _ .
Energy  NorthWestemn Fublic Service

l Gas Standards Subject: Emergency T Date Effective Standard Number
Emergency: General ‘ 07/13/2004

1500

 Supersedes Dated Prepared By Approved
Standard: 1500 07/01/2002 M. Baruth i

Committee
42 Fire and/or Explosion

4.2.1 Inthe many communitics where NorthWestern Energy employees are members
of the fire department, prompt company representation at the site is assured. If

there is any indication that natural gas is involved, the Area Leadership should
be promptly contacted.

422 Inother commaunities Fire and Police officials shall be provided with appropriate
telephone numbers for contacting NorthWestern Energy.

423 Nearby buildings shall be checked for combustible hazards, and evacuated if
necessary.

4.2.4 Turn off service cock, if conditions permit, or cut service.

4.2.5 If a wide spread concentration is found, shut off appropriate emergency valves.
4.2.6 Begin repair procedures.

4.3 - Natural Disaster

4.3.1 The complexity and variety of natural disasters prohibits the formulation of a
procedure that will fit every circumstance. The evaluation of the disaster will
determine what parts of this manual will be put into effect for example:

a) Fire and explosion

b) Procedures for investigating gas leaks

<) Shut down of sections with emergency valves
d) Complete system shut down and re-lite,

432 NorthWestern Energy efforts must be coordinated with the appropriate Fire,
Police or Civil Defense agencies.

44

44.1 Al personnel normally taking customer service requests should have available a

rubber stamp printed with the words "GAS LEAK" in capital letters
approximately 3/8 inch high. This rubber stamp shall be stamped "GAS LEAK"
across the top face of the Trouble Order, so that it is clearly visible to all
personnel handling the Trouble Order,

442 Gas leakage control is always the first order of business, and two-way radio
equipment or cellular telephones should be utilized to promptty dispatch

qualified personnel to leak investigation. The person taking the lcakage report is
responsible for contacting personnel for leak investigation.

1500-3



N -rthWesterny '
| Eneigy  NorthWestemn Public Service

Gas Standards Subject: Emergency Date Effective Standard Number

Emergency: General 07/13/2004 1500
Supersedes Dated Prepared By Approved

| Standard: 1500 07/01/2002 M. Baruth Committee

443 When a leakage report is received, the hour received should be carefully noted
on the Trouble Order and the "Originated by", "Dispatched by", "Date" and
"Hour - AM or PM" should be carefully noted by the person receiving the
leakage report. The person or persons handling the investigation and repair of
the leakage report should carefully complete “Completed by “,” Date, Hour -
AM or PM and a complete description of the investigation.

444 akage re m Iwa investigated, and lea

quickly and efficiently as humanly possible.

5.0 Guidelines for Handling Leak Calls

5.1  Listed on the following page are some guidelines for handling leak calls. Each Area
should develop a similar list to review with the men and women who handle leak calls
at each Area location.

52

The steps below make up our emergency plan in regards to handling gas leaks.

5.2.1 Prompt dispatching of leak tickets. Remember we never know how serious a
leak may be and must get someone there as soon as possible. In the event the
dispatcher uses the (any unit) call any employee regardless of whether he is in
service department or construction department should answer this call.

52.2 Once on the scene, determine if an explosive mixture is present in or around the

suspect building.

5.2.3 If an explosive mixture is present in the building, evacuate the building and shut

off the gas supply to the building,
5.2.4 Take steps necessary to ventilate the building.
5.2.5 Check adjacent buildings and follow steps 3 and 4 as necessary.

5.2.6 Request additional help as needed.

5.2.7 Work with fire department, police,l etc. to get the electricity shut off outside the
building to remove possible sources of ignition.

5.2.8 Priorto any digging, all underground utilities will be located.

5.2.9 If high concentrations of gas are found outside the building, ventilate around the
foundation by digging holes.
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N rthWestern )
Enersy  NorthWestern Public Service

Gas Standards Subject: Emergency Date Effective

Standard Number
Emergency: General ] 07/13/2004

1500
Approved
Committee

Supersedes Dated Prepared By
Standard: 1500 07/01/2002 M. Baruth

5.2.10 Pin point the leak, dig up, and repair, if possible, or shut the gas supply off
upstream from the leak.

5.2.11 Consider the possibility of the gas getting into sewers, either sanitary or storm.
Check available manholes to be sure.

5.2.12 Be sure that only one leak is involved. The CGI readings should drop fairly

soon after the leak is vented. Continued high reading would indicate that further
investigation is in order.

5.2.13 In the case of damage due to excavation, it is possible that other portions of the
line may be leaking due to the damage. All parts of the system adjacent to the
damage must be checked with leak detection instruments to insure there are no
other leaks. This shall include checking for gas accumulations in nearby
buildings. If necessary, steps shall be taken to promptly stop the flow of gas.

5.2.14 Acquaint appropriate o perating and maintenance employees with the procedures.

. 5.3 Special circumstances may arise about leak calls where the customer calls for example,
on Wednesday but wants to wait until Friday to have someone come out.

The following should be done:

5.3.1 ‘The only good solution is to convince the customer that leak calls must be
handled promptly. Since the odor level does not necessarily indicate the danger

level. Natural gas odor can be diluted by filtration through the soil when the
actual leak is below ground.

5.3.2 Ifthis fails, the customer will be advised the gas will be shul off until
NorthWestemn is able to investigate the leak. Create a scrvice order to dispatch a

. technician to take a series of leak tests outside the house and also shut off the gas
to the home.

5.3.3 Tag the customer’s door to indicate that a possible gas leak was reported at this
location. Since a complete check could not be performed the gas has been
disconnected until a leak investigation can be completed. If a customer has
multiple entrances to the home, all entrances should be tagged if the main

entrance used by the customer is unclear, 1o ensure the tag is clearly identified by
the customer.

5.3.4 Write a good record on the work ticket of the action taken.

5.3.5 Alwaysmake up a ticket on a leak or odor call, do not ask them to call back later.

1500 -5



N rthWestern
Eoergy  NorthWestern Public Service

Gas Standards Subject: Emergency
Emergency: General

Date Effective Standard N?n;ber
07/13/2004 1500

Prepared By Approved
Committee

Supersedes Dated
Standard: 1500 07/01/2002 M. Baruth

6.0  Establishing and Maintaining Communications With Appropriate Five, Police Agencies,

News Media and the Public

6.1 Communications with Fire, Police and Public Qfficials
6.1.1 Telephone

In Appendix C is a listing of telephone contacts for fire, police and other public
official contacts specific to each community and county.

6.1.2 Meetings

6.1.2a On a bi-annual basis NorthWestern will offer to conduct informational
meetings with appropriate fire, police and other public officials to:

. Leam the responsibility and resources of each government

organization that may respond to a gas pipeline emergency.
Acquaint the officials with the Company’s ability to respond to a
gas pipeline emergency.

Identify the types of gas pipeline emergencies of which the
Company notifies the officials.

Discuss mutual assistance to minimize hazards to life and
property.

6.1.2b Reference materiat such as videos, handouts, brochures, etc will be
available for area use by contacting the DOT coordinator,
communications or safety department,

6.1.2c Meetings with fire, police or other public officials will be documented
and submitted to the DOT coordinator. A standard form is available in
the Form tab to document the meetings.

62  Communications with News Media

The Area Leadership shall clear all statements, either written or verbal, that are made to
the news media that reflect company policy or procedure.

63  Public Education (192.616)

6.3.1 Each operator shall establish a continuing educational program to enable
customers, the public, appropriate government organizations and persons
engaged in excavation related activities to recognize a gas pipeline emergency
for the purpose of reporting it to the operator or to appropriate public officials.

6.3.2 The program and the media used must be as comprehensive as necessary to

reach all areas in which the operator transports gas. The program must be

conducted in English and in other languages commonly understood by a

significant number and concentration of the non-English speaking population in
the operator’s area.
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6.32.1 Significant number and concentration being defined by non-English
speaking business signs being prominent in a operator’s area, or

6.3.2.2 US Census population records indicate a concentration of non-English
speaking population in the operator’s area greater than the national
average.

63.3 The general public located in the area of the gas system will be provided with

brochures and/or phone stickers that indicate an emergency phone number to call
if they smell natural gas.

Equipment, Tools and Material

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

In the event of an emergency, equipment, tools and material will be drawn from existing
company resources or acquired as needed.

Emergency tools such as valve wrenches, stop-off equipment, plastic squecze-off tools,

etc. shall be readily available to qualified employees. A list of emergency tools for each
area is located in Appendix C.

The Area Leadership shall be responsible for seeing that these tools are kept in their
assigned location. .

Help and/or equipment required from other than Area resources shall be acquired by the
Area Leadership.

Other equipment such as various warning tags, flashlights, screwdrivers, vise-grips, and
match holders, will be kept in token amounts at the Area Office. The major stockpile of
these materials will be stored at Kearney, Nebraska, and Huron, South Dakota. Matches

and flashlight batteries should be purchased locally as soon as possible after the "no
gas" develops.

Protection of Life and Property

~ 81

32

8.3
8.4

8.5

Follow the previously outlined procedures in protecting life first, then property.

If necessary, utilize emergency shut down valves to isolate an area in order to minimize
damage to that area, Valve Sectionalizing maps can be accessed in the area office.

Prior to any digging, all underground wtilities will be located.

If the leak cannot be promptly pinpointed, protect property by digging vent holes
between the suspected leak area and adjacent buildings.

Repair the leak according to standard construction practices.

Investipation of Failures (192.617)

Any pipeline failure or accident damage shall be investigated as soon as possible according to
O&M standard 1065.
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10 Scope

These procedures are intended to comply with the minimun requirements as set by the
Department of Transportation 49 CFR part 192.617.

20  Investigation of Fajlures (192.617)
2.1  General .
As soon ag practical afier the end of an emergency, if applicable, an investigation shall -
be conducted for analyzing accidents and failures. Data on all failures and accidental
damage will be compiled using the guidance of O&M Standard 10135, continuing
surveitlance (192.613). The information for completing a DOT 30-day incident report
form contained in Part 191 (O&M Standard 1060) may constitute an adequate analysis

_of a failure or accident. A detailed analysis, especially of repeated occurrences, should
be made when the analysis could be useful in minimizing a recurrence of the failure.

22 Response to Incident

If a detailed analysis is to be made, rapid response is 1mportant for preserving the
imegrity of the specimens and gathenng mformatmn

2.3  Incident Data Collection

When a detailed analysis is to be made, a NorthWestem Energy representative at the

scene of the incident will be designated to coordinate the investigation. That person’s
responsibilities may include the following:

23.1 Acting as a coordinator for all ficld investigation personnel.
2.3.2 Muintaining a log of the personnel, equipment, and witnesses.
233 Recording in chronological order the events as they take place.
2.3.4 Ensuring that photographs are taken of the incident and surrounding areas.
2.3.5 Ensuring the notification of all appropriate governmental authorities.
2.3.6 Ensuring the preservation of evidence. Samples removed for laboratory analysis
should be stored in a secure location at the local officé or service center.
24  Investigation

When a detailed analysis is to be made by aNoﬂhWestern Energy representative.
The investigation should include the following:

2.4.1 Determination of the probable cause of the incident.

2.4.2 Evaluation of the initial response to the incident.

2.4.3 The need for system improvernents if necessary.

2.44 The need for improvements in response, management and :nvesuganon of

" incidents,

25  Specimens
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Where appropriate, the investigation will include the selection of samples of the failed
facility or equipment for laboratory examination for the purpose of determining the
causes of the failure and minimizing the possibility of a recurrence. The material must

be tagged, with a tag that contains all pertinent data, and preserved in a designated
location until all incident investigations are completed.

2.5.1 Pipe, Weld, or Fusion Failure

A section of pipe that has a defect should be removed with a2 minimum of 12” of
good pipe on each end.

2.5.2 Material Failure - Steel ox Cast Jron Valves

An inoperable, cracked or broken flanged valve should be cut out of the the tine
with the flanges, bolts and gaskets intact if practicable. Welded valves that are
found to be broken or inoperable should be removed with special attention paid
to the amount of pipe movement when the line is cut. Photographs and
measurements can be used to record the shifting of the pipe.

2.5.3 Equipment Failure

‘Where feasible, meter and regulator sets or other equipment should be removed
as a unit without dismantling the piping and kept intact by cutting the piping on
both the inlet and outlet of the meter set. If the service has been disconnected at
the main or cut, pipe should be cut off up stream of the meter service valve so
that the valve remains with the set.

2.5.4 Other Failures

Failures not specifically covered by the foregoing should be referred to
Engineering Department for direction on selection of samples of failed facilities
and/or equipment for laboratory analysis.

2.6  Testing and Analysis

2.6.1 Standard destructive and non-destructive techniques are the preferred means to

examine test specimens. The testing methods used will be suited to the
particular material being tested, and be pertinent to the failure investigation.

2.6.2 Analysis and date on failures will be compiled and reviewed. The need for

continuing surveillance of pipeline facilities will be determined vsing the
guidelines outlined in O&M Standard 1015,
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